
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, May 9, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance………………………….……………………………………..Jim Webster 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of April 11, 2024 minutes  
B. Layover of April 25, 2024 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule) 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) to the Salary for the 

Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

3. Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for Winnebago County Health Department to be 
Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, May 23, 2024 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 



















CONSENT 
AGENDA 









Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: May 2, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) to the 
Salary for the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments 

County Code:      N\A 

Board Meeting Date: May 9, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? Not Applicable    Appropriation Amount: Not Applicable 
If not, explain funding source: Not Applicable  
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Not Applicable    Budget Impact: Not Applicable 

Background 
Information: 

On October 27, 2022, the Winnebago County Board approved the 
reappointment of Thomas Hodges, as Winnebago County Supervisor 
of Assessments for a four-year term from November 8, 2022 to 
November 8, 2026, with an annual salary of $93,636.14. On April 13, 
2023, the Winnebago County Board approved a salary adjustment to 
$114,188.00, which was effective on October 1, 2023. To be consistent 
with other department heads and elected officials, the Finance 
Committee is recommending the addition of a cost-of-living 
adjustment (COLA) for the Supervisor of Assessments effective on 
October 1, 2024 and October 1, 2025. 

Recommendation: Administration supports this resolution 

Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review:   States Attorney’s Office did review this proposal 

Follow-Up: Will be included in fiscal year 2025 and 2026 budget 



  County Board Meeting: May 9, 2024 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2024 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A COST-OF-LIVING ADJUSTMENT (COLA)  
TO THE SALARY FOR THE  

WINNEBAGO COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS   

WHEREAS, the Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/3-40 (Code), provides that the annual 
salary of the supervisor of assessments is fixed by the county board subject to a minimum 
amount depending on the population of the county; and  

WHEREAS, Section 3-40 of the Code further provides that if the Department of 
Revenue of the State of Illinois determines that the total assessed value of property in a county, 
as equalized by the supervisor of assessments under Section 9-210, is between 31 1/3% and 35 
1/3% of the total fair cash value of property in the county, subject to appropriation, the 
Department shall reimburse the county monthly from the Personal Property Tax Replacement 
Fund 50% of the amount of salary the county paid to the officer for the preceding month; and  

WHEREAS, the minimum amount for Winnebago County, Illinois (County) falls into 
the category of “in counties with 200,000 or more but less than 300,000 inhabitants, not less than 
$13,000” and the County meets the parameters for 50% reimbursement by the Department; and  

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2022, the Winnebago County Board approved the 
reappointment of Thomas Hodges, as Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments for a four-
year term from November 8, 2022 to November 8, 2026, with an annual salary of $93,636.14; 
and  

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2023, the Winnebago County Board approved a salary 
adjustment to $114,188.00, which was effective on October 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, having conferred with the County Administration, recommends that the annual salary for 
the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments include a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) 
equal to the annual increase in CPI-U for the year ending May 2024, not to exceed 3.5%, 
effective on October 1, 2024 and October 1, 2025.  



WHEREAS, the Finance Committee wishes to be consistent with other department heads 
and elected official salaries, who receive COLA salary adjustments. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the annual salary for the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments 
include a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) equal to the annual increase in CPI-U for the year 
ending May 2024, not to exceed 3.5%, effective on October 1, 2024 and October 1, 2025.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Treasurer, County 
Auditor, County Board Office, Director of Human Resources and the Supervisor of Assessments.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



            Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



Ordinance Executive Summary
 

Prepared By:         Steve Schultz 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    May 2, 2024  

Ordinance Title:      Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for Winnebago County Health Department 

Board Meeting Date:    May 9, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No   Appropriation Amount:   $0 

If not, explain funding source:  Transfer from 555 N Court Fund Balance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 60100 (Health Department) and 78000 (555 N Court) 

FY2024 Budget Impact: $389,840 

Background Information:  The Winnebago County Board of Health approved a major expenditure for 
demolition of the 401 Division Street property on September 19, 2023.  The health fund is not funded for 
this type of expenditure and is seeking reimbursement from the 555 N Court Fund.  The Health 
Department also will receive additional grant funding through the Strong Communities grant and Local 
Health Protection grant.   

Recommendation:    Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 

Legal Review:   Not applicable 

Follow-Up:   Not applicable 



1 

2024 Fiscal Year Finance:   May 2, 2024 
Lay Over:   May 9, 2024 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 23, 2024 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2024 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for Winnebago County Health Department 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board of Health approved a major expenditure for 
demolition of the 401 Division Street property on September 19, 2023. The health fund is not 
funded for this type of expenditure and is seeking reimbursement from the 555 N. Court Fund. 
The Health Department has also received grant additional funding through the Strong 
Communities grant and Local Health Protection grant; and, 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 at its September 28, 2023 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #24-005 Health Department. 



2 
 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 
 



DATE SUBMITTED: 
DEPARTMENT: 

FUND#: 

Object 
Department 0rg (Account) 

Number Number 
78000 4-9110 

Fund: 

Fund: 

Fund: 

2024 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT 

4/11/2024 AMENDMENT NO: 24-005-A 
555 Court Fund SUBMITTED BY: James Keeler 

78000 DEPT. BUDGET NO. 

Amendments Revised 
Adopted Previously Approved Increase 

Object {Account) Description Budget Approve<I Budget (Decrease) 
Transfer to Other Funds so $0 $389,840 

so 

so 

$0 

So 

so 

so 

so 

so 

so 

So 

so 

$0 

$0 

so 

$0 

so 

s 389,840 

Budget 

Amendments to 

Date Including 

Orlglnal Above Proposed 

Budget Amendment 

301 

Reason budget amendment is required: 

Revised Budget 
after Approved 

Budget 
Amendment 

$389,840 

$0 

so 

so 

so 

$Ci 

$0 

so 

so 

$0 

$0 

$0 

.so 

so 

$0 

so 

so 

$ 389,840 

Proposed 

Revised 

Budget 

-

The Winnebago County Board of Health approved a Major Expenditure for Demoliton of the 401 Division Street Property on 
09-19-2023. The Health Fund is not fundied for this type of expenditure and is seeking reimbursement from the building
fund for thie building related project. This expenditure was not part of the WCHD budget for 2024
Potential alternatives to budget amendment:
None 

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget: Increase in deficit of $389,840.00 

Revenue Source: N/A 

- / 

Director of Finance: .r --'-'1 Vff':/ -A.. Date: <-tf�"-y 
Public Health Administrator:// Date: 

Board of Health: V Date: 



DATE SUBMITTED: 

DEPARTMENT: 

FUND#: 

Object 
Department Org (Account) 

Number Number 
6Q100/6035S 43190 

60100/60355 32120 

60100/60001 32.120 

60100/60001 42.260 

60100 39110 

60100 43190 

Fund: 

Fund: 

Fund: 

2024 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT 

4/11/2024 AMENDMENT NO: #24-005 B 

Health Department SUBMITTED BY: James Keeler 

60100 DEPT. BUDGET NO. 

Amendments Revised 
Adopted Previously Approved Increase 

Object (Account) Description Budget Approved Budget (Decrease) 
Other Professional Services $0 $0 $150,000 

State Operating Grants $0 $0 ($150,000) 

$0 

State Operating Grants $0 ($10,000) 

Medical Supplies $0 $10,000 

$0 

Transfer in from other Funds $0 ($389,840) 

Other Professional Services $0 S389,840 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

so 

$0 

so 

so 

so 

s -

Budget 

Amendments to 

Date lncludin1 

Original Above Proposed 

Budget Amendment 

301 

Reason budget amendment is required: 

Revised Budget 
after Approwd 

Budget 
Amendment 

$150,000 

($150,000) 

$0 

($10,000) 

$10,000 

$0 

($389,8401 

$389,840 

so 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

so 

so 

so 

$0 

s 

Proposed 

Revised 

Budget 

-

Several Demolitions will be performed under the Strong Comm unites Grant funding. An increase in the Comprehensive 

Local Health Protection Grant for STI kits will be purchased and distributed under the grant deliverables for this funding . 

Health Fund not funded for capital, demolition or construction tvoe oroiects. 
Potential alternatives to budget amendment: 

None 

.

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget: Revnue Expense Nuetral 

Revenue Source: IDHA & IDPH - Fund 0420 

.- / I 
- -

'1/0 . .J:1 yDirector of Finance: ,, I 'I .1, ';I"" "---- Date: 

fl 
-

Public Health Administrator: Date: 
Board of Health: II Date: 



UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

Announcements & Communications 
Date: May 9, 2024 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission the following:

a. Byron Station, Unit1- Notification of NRC Baseline Inspection and Request for
Information.

b. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Unit Nos, 1 and 2-Audit Plan
in Support of Review of License Amendment Request Regarding Revision of
Technical Specifications 3.7.15, Spent Fuel Pool Boron Concentration,” 3.7.16,
“Spent Fuel Assembly Storage, and 4.3.1: Fuel Storage, Criticality” (EPID L-2023-
LLA-0136)

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago
County Treasurer the following:

a. Collateralization Report – March 31, 2024
b. Investment Report - as of March 31, 2024
c. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances –March, 2024
d. Interest Report- As of March 31, 2024

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Authorizing a Cost-of-Living Adjustment to the Salary for Winn. Cty. Supervisor of Assessments
	Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for Winnebago County Health Department
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



